NITED STATES OF AMERICA
HTMES I HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

In the Muatter of:

HUDALJ 10-M-121-CMP/17
OGC Case No. 09-9873-MR

Premium Capital Funding, 1.1.C,
d/b/a Topdot Mortgage,

T S S

Respond

DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND ORDER

On Mav 5,2 S
(“HUD”} in: st tuted this action by filing the
(“Complaint™ or ‘“("‘oszzp%."“} against % remium Ca s'ia} ‘unding, doing business as Topdot

MOI’tLdUL‘ { Rc DOTK %;
Administra juire
(NHA”). 12 US.Co$8 1701 ¢r seqg. The €

sing and Urban Development

ure to meet HUD/Federal Housing
i ol the National Housing Act, as amended
ymplaint includes a prayer for relief for civil money

pendl‘aes n zhc aggregate amount {%f“S()?é,i, u{}, as aui Wor i/(.,d bv } U.S.C. g l 51—14(b)(]) and
) . .

24CFR N

. NOTICE OF HEARING RIGHTS AND PROCEDURES
WITH RESPECT TO CIVHL MONEY PENALTIES,
PURSUANT TO 24 CF.R. § 3085, et seq.

Requesting a Hearing

16 ) It

.S, Department of

srved with a Civil

he opportumty for a hearing on the record on any

int.or on the appropriateness of the penalty




ire a hearig, which will be before an independent
vou must submit a request for a hearing to the
aw Judges and HUD no later than fifteen (15)
‘this {“mmplaéri, as require bx 1@3511}3&011 This

X;;

Filing a Response

ent vou request a hearing, you must also serve upon
Jttice of /\éf’n'ni»zzrat*\ff" Law Judges, a written
he Complamt within thirty (30) days of

4
receipt of the Complaint, unless such time 1s kamsud by the

5()

e fm* cood cause.

1195, %’e%éﬁéz“{‘ to respond to this Complaint as identified above may
result in the imposition of the penalty in the amount sought.

Compl. 94 1188-1191. 1195,

After the Complaint was s‘aa"s'wgi Respondent filed no request for hearing nor response to
the Complaint. On \@ 3, 2010 ;> ile E the Government’s Motion for Default Judgment
(“Motion” or “Mot.”") pursuant to 24 C.IFR. §§ 26.38.26.41 and 30.90(c), requesting that a
default decision be issued against Res ;mdmt Lmd that reliet be ordered in accordance with the
prayer for relicf set forth in the Ce The Certificate of Service of the Motion indicates
that the Motion wus scrved by clectro onic iz'ammi%k;rm s‘ c-mail) and lirst-class mail on May 3,

2010, on *Counsel for Respondent.” See Certificate of Service of Government’s Motion for
Default Judgiment. HUD , HC 1o an ov wwm‘, the Motion was not served on
Respondent at the time .07 See Supplemental Certificate of Service of Government’s Motion

for Default Judg: m‘:z’li, n.l.

emiah Mahoney issued an
apital Funding, LLC,
ordering Respon }’5 Motion «;h(}uid not be
granted. No response to the Ord ise has b ite. On October 18, 2010
Judge Mahoney issued 4 Notice of Disqualification removing E‘;zm%w as the adjudicator of the
case and the undersigned was des  to preside in this matter on October 22, 2010.

Order to Show ¢

RS



rved the Motion on Mr. Brown at two addresses via
and first-class mail. To date, Respondent has not filed

On November ié‘}i
United Parcel Sery .

i
a response to the ?x?

i}ué‘ﬁ

11 Applicabie Procedural Bules

The Rules ut Part
“first class mai% RISRIE zi ¢

H

30 further provides
the respondent shal
Judges no later than 15 da
C.F.R.§30.90(0). Also. -
respondent shaiz serve upon HUD W& file with the Office of', ‘xdmnz;stratm: Law Judges a

n 30 days of receipt of the wmpfaim, unless such time is
ue im ﬂamd cause.” 24 C.IR. § 30.90(b). The Rules

thata complaint for civil money penalties must be served by
ermeans.” 24 CFRC§ 30.85(d). In pertinent part, Part

ndent dcséz‘cs a hearing before an administrative law judge,

or a hearing to HUD and the Office of Administrative Law

zccc;m of't e “(‘I"‘*;}Eai nt, as *{aguimd by statute.” 24

i which respondent has requested a hearing, the

Y any case

written answer 1o the complaint witl
extended by the administrative law

provide that “[1]f no response I then fi a mwimn for default judgment,
together with a copyv of m Jua}t(ia ¢ Rules at Part 26].” 24 C.F.R. §
30.90(c). In turn. Part ollows:

(a) Gcncrzs% The respondent may be found in default, upon motion, for failure to

file a timely responsce o the Government's complaint. The motion shall include a

copy of the complaint and o ;}é‘{épow Idefault order, and shall be served upon all
he | ¢

10 days from such service to respond to the motion.

parties. The respondent shall

all issuc a decision on the motion within 15 days
or filing a response to the default motion. If a
constitute the final agency action.

(b) Default order. The Al
after the expiration of the

default order 13 issued, 10g]

(¢) Effect ol defaultc A detault shall constitute an admission of all facts alleged in

it and a waiver of respondent’s right to a hearing on

i ;p(; sed i the complaint s be set forth in the
cly due and payable by respondent without

the Governmen
such allegat ;ms
dzfau order

s mail, overnight delivery,
). When service is made by
cposit in the mail.” /d.



HI1. Motion {or Delaule

5

In 1its Motion,
Complaint on March
support thercof two US|
and Confirm” delivery co
certified mail receipts. Mo
at 125 Jericho Turnpike, S
Washington, D.C., on th
Gallegos (“Dec!

I states that Re \?Oé}tsw}i and Respondent’s counsel received the

() Mareh 2, 2010, respectively. Mot 9 4. HUD presents in
service (1S ?}S"’} certified mail *cwmts and two USPS “Track
caturing receipt numbers matching those on the
‘vcz v of the parcel addressed to Respondent
. and Respondent’s counsel in
;} Jx{s presents the Declaration of Nilda
3, 45}12’, i which Ms. Gallegos states that on

i
i
3

45

Y dovaments |

< f{’f. H?
:%;%?gfd M

aales

ration” or “ecl

February 26, 2010, she served a copy of the Complaint via U %P% certified mail to the last known
addresses of Respondent und Re "s counscel. and that she had “not received a request for
a hearing from Respondent.”™ N her. in a Nov %*mhu 24,2009 letter, Respondent

i

responded to Hf D7s Pre-Penalty Notice ch HUD had sent (pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 30.70) to
Kcsponmnt t known address of 125 ] ”um Turnpike, Suite 400, Jericho, New York.
Compl. §

ire proot of service of a complaint, however, Exhibit 3 to
the Motion shows not only th D was matled tnan appropriate manner to Respondent, but
also that Respondent received su wel Respondent was properly served with the Complaint
in accordance with the Rules. [ikewise. the Motion, having been served by overnight delivery
and first-class mail to Respondent’s Tast known address. was ;71‘0%7{:?%\/ served. To date, this
Tribunal has not received any response to the Complaint or Motion from Respondent.

The Rules at Part

The undersi on to decide whether to grant or deny a request for default
judgment, as the Ru respondent who fails to file a timely response “may be found
in default.” 24 C.I'R (emphasis added). 1 has been held that default judgment is

ould be resolved in fuvor of determination on the merits.
-94-0016-8 (March 17, 1995). However, in the present
vice of the Complaint and Motion, and Respondent’s
»lamt, the Order (o Show Cause, and the Motion, a

disfavored by law,
Sec’v o/b/o Danvis v,
case, given the evidence of prope
complete failure 1o re
finding of default 15

itis i default for fatlure to file a response to the Complaint
FULS 30900 Respondent’s default constitutes an
ver of the right to a hearing on such

ddm;ssmr % Complant and a we

allegations. 24 C 'R &

iwent s GRANTED, based upon

ng of Law.

1
e



Iv.

B

6.

ciopment (“HUD”) has

, j*} 17351-14(b)(1), to impose
ce or lender with a mortgage insured by HUD
Fmaterially violates any provision of Title I1 of the
handbook. or Mortgagee Letter that is issued under
St-1 The Sceretary has delegated the

“fiwz to the Mortgagee Review Board
ui W iiu n H 's Office of the Assistant Secretary for
4 {“.iiéi § 30.535(a); 12 U.S.C. § 1708(c)(1).

acivil
pursuant t

Act or any

the Act. Compl.
authoritv to init:
(“the Board™). which
Housing - Federal

Fopdot Mortgage, Mortgagee No.
ymplaint, a corporation registered to do
«dmortgagee, as defined in 24 C.F.R. §
v 4
58

riga
25 Jericho Tpke., Suite 400,

Respondent.

ir
82 Mot B

o~

business address is
i

On April , HU d Respondent as a E‘xi{m—%;‘;crviscd Mortgagee, as
defined in ﬁ‘f@ {" RS Respondent obtained Direet Endorsement approval

[205.5 and Direet Lender Program approval. Compl. §
Lits Application Tor Approval with HUD, it agreed to
4,

pursuant to 24 C.[ 1
73, When R

comply

Fother requirements. Comp.

> originution and underwriting of FHA-insured
IUD Tandbooks 4000.4 REV-1, 4000.2

< 1 & g

g
{m’n;’};, 75,

FIUD ha :
loans in 24 C5 R 1
REV-3, 40601

HUD’s Special

i Assessment Team reviewed Respondent’s HUD/FHA-insured
mortgage ‘iu;m ori [ON activit [det

med that Respondent had violated
numerons HUTRH P53 Mot Bxo 1

ated October 1, 2009, constituting a Pre-
0. the Board noti kd Respondent that it

d imposing civil money penalties “based
I ... which were discovered
nation activities during the week

Prioy o
Penalty
Was OO




9.

11.

[,
Lo

mortlgapgees ar
INCOrporates
require

ce and that meets HUD s
. REV-2, Chapter 7.

ersion Mortgages (“"HECMs”) must
wvision requiring the review of HECMs to
pate counselin g and that any referral fees paid
gt ng 3};{:1 are appropriatelv disclosed. Compl. 9 119.
rrement via HUD Handbook 4060.1, REV-2, Chapter

arc reason
Rupnm fent |
, paragraph 7

Respondent’s quality
wers receiving counseling or

4(0) violated HUD

), b\ not including the

2, Chapter 7, paragraph 7-
ent’s v mE ion was matcrial, as defined by 24

5

ling to mclude the required HECM
an constitutes grounds for imposing a civil money
SE-14(b) (1) and 24 CLFRL§ 30.35(a). Compl. 4 133.

Respondent’s |
Provisions u
penalty |

andbook 4060.1. R1:V-2. Chapter 7, paragraph 7-3(1)
ipt action to uuii a \Qmpriatclv with any material

ich may include the issuance of a final report

a i ;%c for ?hui completion, and any

Respondent hac
that mortpagees ey
findings from quality control reviews, whi

eI

denti taken.,

planned follow-uy

' 5?8) oans as grade 4, which
{umpi at 21. Respondent
s with respect to nine (9) of
1 zssg sect to twenty-two (22)
{ those loans and published its
itractor’s review of seven { ”F}
mgs, nor did they include

‘' 130.

those Ie
of those
finding
of th
timetable



15.

16.

18.

19.

[S]

under 12 U.S.CL8 173515 14(g), violated HUD
(1. by failing to t E\ : the d§ yropriate action in response
: f’i”*%d by HUD Handbook 4060.1, REV-2, Chapter 7,
§ ’ E‘ s defined bv”’JrCFR 3 30.10.

Respondent kno ,
regulations i 2 CF
to quality
paragraph 7-3
Compl. 998

0.1, RE=V-2, Chapter 7, paragraphs 7-
s control reviews for each

1o default within the first six payments, and to have a
rosades for the review and confirmation of information

ns. mcluding income and asset s*g‘vcriﬁcation and credit report

e

HUD Handbook 4060

Lespondent had noti
6fi)} ciﬁi% {E} ES“
early pavment dels

> required to pertorm guality

quality a,:a};%éiw‘{ g*;z'

loans sclected for review. Compl. 99 142-143.

Responc v a complete quality control review of ten (10) loans because
Rmpowgm never reviewed or confirmed the information contained in the loan
apphication 1 feted an icome and asset reverification or credit report and
appraisal revicew . %345 Respondent LzzE ed to perform any quality control
reviews of nine (V) 1 ! 1 days past due within the first six mortgage
payments. Compl. # 146,

Respondent knowmgly. us defined under 12 U.S.CL§ 1735(%14(g), violated HUD

“ ‘ y tailing to conduct quality control reviews of

) Handbool 4060.1, REV-2_ Chapter 7, paragraphs 7-
tions were material, as defined by 24 C.F.R. § 30.10.

regulations in 2

certain foangs a
6Dy and (1),
Compl,

wlity control review of
umftms pursuant to 12

Respondent’s \femzzta ng w m mx}xa toqu

nineteen {193 loar

L.S.Cos

I, REV-5. Chapter 3, and HUD
[ 3-3, that nmrtgjag:ees are
tits deeision to approve mortgage loans,



b
]

[N
(¥ ]

[\
+

N
N

it details about therr financial situation, and resolve any
v application documentation before approving the loan.

epancies in 23‘;{3 :ng*;"écz«ziéo;zs; and related documentation

tod the loans Tor HHUD insurance endorsement without
z';'ss:mzsz'y @asu mentation. Compl. 4% 159-169.

I&x;ﬁun ent fail
for thre

;Y 1
{3} i0

cxgﬁzm;smy}f

~14(g), violated HUD

34, by fai hng to gather sufficient
rcations and related

2 for approval. as required by FHA

5. (Shzzgéig* “ ':w@ HUD Handbook 4060.1,
-1 34 Rc@p()ndent’s violations
L 171-173.

Respondent’s |
181C

n iomxs‘ésn |

mi ’}4 C F.R. § 30. 35{&)

Chapter 2, Section 2, paragraphs 2-6, 2-7(B),

r 3, paragraph 3-1(17), Respondent had notice of

Vmortgagees must evaluate borrowers” credit history and

on the Toan and hold enougly assets to close the

e the requirements for underwriting and qualifying

ce s required to verify borrowers” employment for the

v and document any form of effective income used to

il ¢ stundards set forth in HUD
03.5(c¢) and (d).

suant 1o the due

omply with themin 24 C.FR.§82

me. {“s:}mp 44 80, 177.
cribe the facts

yated herem by 2‘{:565‘%&{36,




b

B

28.

ent requirenents ;mmmmw to borrowers’

before submutting them to HUD for endorsement, as
tUD Handbook 41551, % V-5, Chapters 2 and 3.
iolations were material, as defined by 24 C.F.R. §

1
551

| ol failing to adequately document

mformation with respect to fourteen (14) mortgage loan

i 12 civil money penalties pursuant to 12 U.S.C.
Compl.

, Chapter 2, Section 2, paragraphs 2-12, 2-13,
wdent had notice of the required procedure for

me ratio, by which morteagees can determine whether
expenses, and 'the 1 requirement that the mortgagee remark
isating factors in cases where the ratios exceed HUD
mutted to HUD for FITA-insurance endorsement, in order
Is required by 24 C1UR.§8 203.5(¢) and (d). Compl. 4

&

ssgszziwam campcnsating factors to
come ratios for the loans’ borrowers
g alations. Compl. 49 81, 276.

ore fully deseribing the idcts of these

S8 T35 14w, violated HUD

/ () by fathing to include or document
its justification for ap pzmmw fifty (50) loans
¢ standards of FHA regulations in HUD

| [ elter 03 16. Compl. 99
by Ea’% CFR§30.10. Compl.

mclude compensating factors
ith respect to fifty (50) loans
mtto 12 U.S.C. § 1735f-

4



ad
Lad

34

(S
o

Lad
<3

r 2, Section 2, Respondent had notice of
letermine a borrower’s capacity to repay a
v; f”aéabié%%z%sw income stability, before
nt, in order to meet the due
} Section 2-7(A) provides

s chigibility, the lender must
two years. Section 2-9 provides that
rmine cligibility using the
{,,ia:m;g:s%. €% 673-678.

sordent :«;zzb;;éiﬁﬁf*{‘i zi‘s HUD ibr I?I"M-insurance

s 1o qua ]n‘y borrowers for
79 through 762 of the
s, are hereby incorporated

/35{-14(g), violated HUD
, ; ate properly borrowers’
> with ii;mdimm\ 41551, 1 i’fi“sﬂf?., Chapter 2, Section 2,

' fatling m; a;ulv ; 111iy those

H

violations of failing to caleulate properly the
borrowers of ¢eleven { I} loans constitute grounds for
; 735-14b)1)and 24 CFR. §

R Spone fent's |

Ursud

spondent had notice of the
%se:‘s“g*s‘;wg:r%’ credit history and
1e mortgage, and
ng borrowers that
¢y, {dy and 203.34,
cdit §i§3 ory, and if the credit
yporting f%acumentaﬁon that

TR TS
« f'&c s




40.

41.

s Respondent submitted to HUD for FHA-insurance
cd to submit sutlicient explanation and documentation to
ligible for the loans m accordance with the standards and
culations. Compl. €9 83, 769. Paragraphs 776 through
deseribing the facts of these violations, are hereby

4z}, violated HUD

o mclude sufficient

~one (41) loans submitted
HUD ié ! ii book 4155.1, REV-5.
,zzzgmmé as delined by 24 C.FR.§

violations of failing to provide sufficient information

one (41) loans constitute grounds for imposing civil money
Fb)(1) and 24 CLFR. § 30.35(a). Compl. 9 83.

2] N
735¢

wapters 2 and 3. Respondent had notice of the
ing borrowers that satisty the due diligence

3.5(¢). () and 203.34. Specifically, mortgagees
ing §?3’<¥£féﬁ§i${ Wil}"%{}i% dowmcntinﬁ the reasons for

I{V{i{

standards mandatc

cannot vt hab
¢ swon, and o

borrowers” debi-to-in

s Respondent submit D for FHA-msurance
» docun mi the reasons for om E ing certain hablhtlcs

“";m”ﬁ nmre i

o). viotated HUD
tor document the reasons
s submitted to HUD




N
Lh

46.

47.

49.

110 document the reasons for
ans constitute grounds for
7?5 Hbyl)yand 24 CFR. §

accordance with the regulations set forth by

bgv uwi ucted by an df}pédi

SOt

m the FHA roster. 24
souk 41502, CHG-1, Chapter 1, paragraph 1-
’i;‘???f’é%é:&()i must be state Em,n > or xtate—wrtmed to

une Ein;\ i“)( m, “ziugrap 1 5-1(A)2)
‘ 142,

o

- 5 of

i

n Respondent submitted to HUD for FHTA-insurance

tailed (o have anappraisal conducted by an appraiser listed on

5, LHds. Paragraphs 1140 through 1148 ot the Complaint,
hereby incorporated herein by

With respect to
endorsement, Res
the FHA roster. Compl #¥

PPN RS PO Toes o
of this violation, are

1olated HUD

by submitting one
ut certificatic ;éuzf an apps'mszil was conducted by an
Ixc;\t;zom%gm s violation was material, as defined by

¢

crial violation of submitting a loan without a proper
imposing civil money penaltics pursuant to 12 U.S.C. §

consiitutes o

1)y and 24 CRL§ 30.35(0). Compl. 9 1152,

Chapter 2, paragraph 2-2(B), Respondent had
tmdicates on a loan application that he or she
y determine reside itus from borrower-
the United States,

te HIUD for FllA-insurance
de the requisite evidence of the
! Efsi}»; 161, Paragraphs 1159 through

il




LA
[}

LA
(d

54.

TIOT of the violation, are hereby

)
meorporated her

L8 17351 14(), violated HUD
V-5, Chapter 2, paz‘zi(fraph 2-2(B) by
cvidence that the borrower holds

K{:x;}om ent’s viclation was
164,

Respor
documentation o

pur

Pmaterial violation of submitting a loan without proper
constitutes grounds for imposing civil money penalties

pe
o [ 2508 (D)) and 24 CF.R.§ 30.35(a). Compl. §1165.

The Himited as deseribed in 12 U.S.C. § 1709(b),
24 CFR.§ 20 and HUD Handbook 4155.1, RE\/—
Chapter 1,oparagraph 1-11. No loan that cmcads the maxiimim ing "z"*bIc amount 18

1oi] i ). 11720 Respondent had notice of these

FHA-msurance endorsement despite the
imum insurable mortgage amount, and
rance. Compl. 9% 87, 1168. Paragraphs
- more fully deseribing the facts of this violation, are

fefined under 7356 14(2). violated HUD

D EE?W@{)(V?% 1 /-5, Chapter |, and 24 CF.R. §

y loans for approva % D after incorrectly calculating the
in over-insured loans ineligible for
iolations were material, as defined by 24

msurable mortgage
1ons constitute grounds for
-14by 1y and 24 CFR. §



of pe z“;ﬁ;uv the following factors must generally be considered:
5. the ability to pay the penalty, injury to the
extent of ;wwxi%sz} benelit to other persons,
violator’s culpability, and such other factors as
3y 24 CUFRL§ 30.80; Compl. 918, The maximum

public, any be
deterrence of
justice m

%

penalty i« fter March 8, 2007, and cach violation shall
constitute = s ¢ or loan application. { E ' 7,24 CFR.§

30.35(c).

uss the factors for determining penalties as
applied to v ot 51,000 for Count 1, $2,000 for Counts 2
through 39, 52 00( » 57.500 for Counts 59 through 61, $7,500 for
Counts 67 through 75, $7.500 tor Co 'ffé iézwzzj 125, §7.500 for Counts %?6 through 136,
$7,500 for Counts 178 through 185, $7.500 for Count 186, $7, 5{55) for Count 187, and $7,500 for
Counts [8¥ 39, 1 HUD notes tha il money gzammes

- recommended would o d E:s;m pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 30.35(c)(1),
and therciore secks the impositon against Respondent ol a total civil money penalty of $674,000.

sy

fane

that upon a (inding of default, “[t}he penalty proposed in the complaint
fault order and shall be immedi za%{;’z*y' due and payable by respondent

I SRS 26,410 Accordingly, payment of the $674,000 penalty
proposed by L IS ' Respondent pursuant to 12 U.S.C.L §
17356 14(hy 1y ).35.

ted in Counts 137

through !



1. fault Judgment is hereby GRANTED. Respondent
C, d/b/a E‘f};}{i{éi Morteage, is hereby found in
have admitied all the allegations in the Complaint and
2. wunt of Six Hundred Seventy-Four Thousand
Fagainst R c‘\:p{mdcm Premium Capital Funding,
, No. 7"2*‘;%%; 1001-0, for the one hundred eighty-
al Housing Act for which Respondent was found liable
wvable imme {%;a Iy without {further proceedings.
3. SRS 20.40(b)y. this Order shall constitute the final agency

-

Administrative Law Judge
U5 Environmental Protection Agency”

17350-14(¢)(2), “imposition of the penalty shall constitute a
ination,” except that review of the imposition of penalties
in twenly {,J days after entry of this Order, a petition with the
court of Appeals. 12 US.CL§ 17354-14(d). Further, if

v this Order, the Secretary may request the Attorney
General of the %;ié’s “MU, to bring an ;zf;*iﬁ{}‘z% against it in an appropriate United States
] nt. The monetary judement may, in the court’s
m expenses incurred by the United States in
7358 14(c).

district cour
discretion,
connection with il

ttu obtain & monctary judgmer

1tal Protection Agency
States E;gpm ment of Housing and Urban
cetive for a ;zua{;s{i rfé:giﬂnéng March 4,

are author
Develop
2010.




